
AGENDA
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.

Monday, November 16, 2015

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Presentation of the Wisconsin Park & Recreation Association 2015 Silver Star Award to
the Parks & Leisure Services Division for Beloit Dirty Dash (Boysen)

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Proposed Ordinance amending the Future Land Use Map of the City of Beloit
Comprehensive Plan to change the future land use designation for the property located at
1633 Keeler Avenue from Institutional & Community Services to Mixed Residential.
(Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for denial 6-0. First reading

b. Resolution authorizing a Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land Use Plan, for
property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue (Kolak Education Center)
(Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for denial 6-0.

c. Proposed Ordinance amending the Zoning District Map to change the zoning district
classification from PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District to PUD, Planned Unit
Development District, for property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue (Kolak Education Center)
(Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for denial 6-0. First reading

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the General Order of
Business and considered at this point on the agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 2, 2015 (Stottler)

b. Resolution approving a Class “B” Beer and “Class C” Wine License for The Noodle
Shop, Co.-Colorado, Inc., d/b/a Noodles & Company, located at 2900 Milwaukee Road
(Stottler) ABLCC recommendation for approval 5-0.

c. Resolution approving a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for Palermo
Enterprise, LLC, 648 Fourth Street (Stottler) ABLCC recommendation for approval 5-0.

d. Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a religious institution in an R-1B, Single
Family Residential District, for the property located at 1230 House Street
(Christensen) Refer to Plan Commission



e. Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C15-03, Concrete
Pavement Repair (Boysen)

f. Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C15-05, Sealcoating
(Boysen)

g. Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C14-14, Eagles Ridge
Pedestrian Path (Boysen)

7. ORDINANCES

a. Proposed Ordinance to amend section 15.06(3)(a) & (b) of the Code of General Ordinances
for the City of Beloit relating to Alcohol Possession and Consumption, but not sale, of
fermented malt beverages or wine (Krueger) Second Reading

8. APPOINTMENTS

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION

a. Library Play & Read Grant received from Department of Public Instruction
(Dimassis/Schomber)

11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Resolution approving City Policy for Grant Application, Notification and Evaluation
(Liggett)

b. Resolution authorizing Application and Acceptance of a Community Grant from the
Walmart Foundation for “Shop with a Hero” Program and Amending the 2015 General Fund
Operating Budget for this Grant Program (Liggett)

c. Resolution Amending the 2015 Capital Improvement Budget for the Purchase of Self
Contained Breathing Apparatus Equipment for Technical Rescue (Liggett)

12. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled
individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please contact the City Clerk's
Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

Dated: November 11, 2015
Lorena Rae Stottler
City Clerk
City of Beloit
www.beloitwi.gov

You can watch this meeting live on Charter PEG digital channel 992. Meetings are
rebroadcast during the week of the Council meeting on Tuesday at 1:00 p.m.;

Thursday at 8:30 a.m.; and Friday at 1:00 p.m.

http://www.beloitwi.gov/


Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Presentation of the WPRA 2015 Silver Star Award to the Parks & Leisure Services Division.

Date: November 16, 2015

Presenter(s): Greg Boysen, PW Director Department(s):Public Works

Overview/Background Information:

Winners of the Wisconsin Parks & Recreation Association (WPRA) Silver Star Award are selected each year by a
distinguished panel of recreation professionals who have expertise in the field of recreation services delivery. Winners of this
award are judged on and must meet five (5) criteria that are essential to having a successful recreation program; goals &
objectives, participation, operational efficiency, creativity & innovation, and marketing. There are four (4) separate categories
for Silver Star Awards, including Youth Programming, Adult/Older Adult Programming, Special Events, and Creative Service
Delivery/Marketing.

Over the years, the City of Beloit has won numerous Silver Star Awards in each one of these distinguished categories, and
this year is awarded the Silver Star for Special Community Events through their initial program offering of “the Dirty Dash”.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1.) First initial offering of a new program designed to promote healthy activity for youth (ages 5-18).
2.) Partner with local business that provided sponsorship funding and/or in-kind services which reduced the expense in

the delivery of this new program.
3.) Accommodated 342 registered participants in the first initial year of offering this new special event.
4.) Provided greater exposure to Big Hill Park and the new Big Hill Center.
5.) In surveying our participants, a large majority (90%) indicated they want this program offered again next year, as well

as countless requests from parents and spectators of our participants that are interested in a similar event that would
include their participation.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

Conforms to Strategic Plan as identified in Goal 3, 4, and 5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels - NA

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature - NA

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems - NA

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently - Yes

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

Presentation of the Award and recognition to the Parks & Recreation staff that organized and coordinated this special event:
Sonya Baden, Recreation Coordinator; Spencer Waite, Recreation Supervisory; and Mark Edwards, Park Supervisor.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: NA



4.a RPB-2015-09, Comp Plan Amendment (Kolak) Council Report

ORDINANCE NO. _____________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
CITY OF BELOIT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows:

Section 1. The Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive
Plan, adopted in §12.015 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is hereby
amended as follows:

The future land use category of the following described land is hereby changed from
Institutional & Community Services to Mixed Residential:

LOTS 1 TO 19 INCL & L 20 EX E 20 FT WOODBURYS ADD. ALSO,
PARTRIDGE AVE VAC FROM KEELER TO CARNEGIE ALSO PARCEL OF
LAND LYING N OF LOTS 14 - 20 & E OF PARTRIDGE VACATED & WEST
OF 1253-1965 ROOSEVELT FIELD, ALL SITUATED IN THE CITY OF
BELOIT, COUNTY OF ROCK, STATE OF WISCONSIN (ALSO KNOWN AS
1633 KEELER AVENUE, PARCEL NUMBER 12531960).

Section 2. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and
publication.

Adopted this _______ day of ____________________, 2015.

City Council of the City of Beloit

________________________________________
Charles M. Haynes, Council President

Attest:

_____________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

Published this _______ day of ________________________, 2015.

Effective this _______day of ________________________, 2015.

01-611100-5231-__________



4.a RPB-2015-09, Comp Plan Amendment (Kolak) Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment

Date: November 16, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department(s): Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Commonwealth Development has submitted an application requesting an amendment to the Future Land Use Map (Map
10) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan.

Key Issues:
 The applicant is requesting the following amendment to the Future Land Use Map:

o 1633 Keeler Avenue (Kolak Education Center) – From Institutional & Community Services to Mixed
Residential.

 The applicant has made an accepted offer to purchase the subject property from the School District of Beloit.
 The applicant has proposed the adaptive reuse/redevelopment of the subject property into a multifamily

residential community with up to 40 dwelling units.
 The proposed Plan amendment is related to the applicant’s concurrent request to rezone the subject property

from PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District.
 An existing Land Use Map and the current Future Land Use Map are attached to this report.
 The attached Staff Report to the Plan Commission includes a discussion of land use context, as well as the public

participation involved in this request. The neighborhood’s petition in opposition is attached to the rezoning report.
 According to the Comprehensive Plan, the subject property is designated for Institutional & Community Services,

a recommendation which is “designed to facilitate large-scale public buildings, schools, religious institutions, etc.”
 Planning staff supports the creation of additional multi-family developments in the City when compatible with

existing and/or proposed land uses and supported by existing and/or planned infrastructure, but the proposed
Plan amendment does not pass these tests.

 The proposed amendment to the Future Land Use Map would dramatically change the character of the
established immediate neighborhood. The subject property has always been a supportive institutional presence,
first as a school and later as an administrative office that offers employment opportunities and operational hours
that are compatible with the surrounding single-family districts. In addition, the management of the site has always
been accountable to the public and surrounding residents, thanks to elected members of the School Board
retaining oversight. The proposed amendment (and corresponding PUD) would change the character of the
neighborhood by altering a century-old land use, eliminating public open space, and increasing daily traffic counts
by 50-100% on local streets that are ill-equipped to absorb additional traffic.

 The Plan Commission held a public hearing to consider the requested amendments on October 7, 2015 and
voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend denial of the requested amendment. Their Resolution is attached.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and 1

st
reading of the proposed Ordinance

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Ordinance, Plan Commission Resolution, and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



4.a RPB-2015-09, Comp Plan Amendment (Kolak) Council Report



4.a RPB-2015-09, Comp Plan Amendment (Kolak) Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: October 7, 2015 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: RPB-2015-09

Request Overview/Background Information:
Commonwealth Development has submitted an application requesting an amendment to the Future Land Use Map (Map
10) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan. Wisconsin’s Comprehensive Planning Law, §66.1001 of the Wisconsin
Statutes, was signed into law in 1999. This legislation is commonly known as Wisconsin’s “smart growth” law, although
the law does not prescribe or require a particular type of development pattern. The Comprehensive Planning law requires
all cities, towns, and villages that regulate land use through land use ordinances (e.g. zoning) to adopt a Comprehensive
Plan. Comprehensive Plans are intended to guide development and redevelopment over a 20-year timeframe. The law
also requires that land use decisions be consistent with the plan.

The Beloit City Council approved the City’s Comprehensive Plan in March 2008 after an extensive public participation
program. All land use decisions made by the City of Beloit, including any actions regarding official mapping, local
subdivision regulation, and zoning regulations, must be consistent with the plan. The Beloit City Council established a
process for amendments (minor changes) to the Comprehensive Plan on February 1, 2010. The Plan Commission’s
recommendation to approve or deny will be forwarded to the City Council for consideration on November 16, 2015.

Key Issues:
 The applicant is requesting the following amendment to the Future Land Use Map:

o 1633 Keeler Avenue (Kolak Education Center) – From Institutional & Community Services to Mixed
Residential.

 The applicant has made an accepted offer to purchase the subject property from the School District of Beloit.
 The applicant has proposed the adaptive reuse/redevelopment of the subject property into a multifamily

residential community with up to 40 dwelling units.
 The proposed Plan amendment is related to the applicant’s concurrent request to rezone the subject property

from PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District.
 Maps – Existing & Future Land Use

o An Existing Land Use Map is attached, which shows the surrounding uses with a color coded legend.
o The Future Land Use Map is attached, which is the adopted map that guides zoning decisions.

 Land Use Context
o The subject property was constructed (circa 1919) as Roosevelt Jr. High School, which operated until

1980. In 1982, the School District renovated the school building into the district’s administrative offices.
The offices were renamed the Kolak Center in 1997. Approximately 55 administrative employees work in
the Kolak Center on a given weekday.

o With at least half of the 6-acre site unimproved, the subject property has historically served as the
neighborhood’s open space. There is a City-owned baseball field (park) to the east of the subject
property, and the parkland backs up to the railroad tracks. The Turtle Creek Floodplain Greenway lies on
the opposite side of the railroad tracks and creek.

o As shown on the attached map, the predominant surrounding land use is single-family residential with a
detached garage. The majority of the neighborhood homes were constructed from 1905 to 1930, when
this neighborhood (and all of Beloit) experienced rapid growth. The majority of homes are owner-
occupied, although that percentage decreases noticeably from the east end of the immediate
neighborhood (Evergreen) to the west end (Prairie Avenue). There are a few duplexes in the immediate
area as well, although the neighborhood was downzoned to single-family residential in 1999.

o The subject property is 1-2 blocks from the closest arterial streets (White Avenue & Prairie Avenue), so all
traffic to/from the site must utilize the connecting local streets (i.e. La Salle, Hinsdale, Eaton, Partridge,
Central, & Keeler). Due to the adjacent greenway, the lack of through traffic, and surrounding single-
family uses, the neighborhood has a distinct “edge-of-town” or “hidden” character that is important to the
existing homeowners.

 Public Participation
o Public input and support is a critical component of Comprehensive Planning. During the applicant’s

neighborhood meeting on August 25
th

and the Plan Commission workshop on September 23
rd

, the
residents of the neighborhood expressed vehement and unanimous opposition to the proposed Plan
amendment.

o Planning staff is also concerned about setting a bad precedent. According to the Plan itself, “frequent



4.a RPB-2015-09, Comp Plan Amendment (Kolak) Council Report

amendments only to accommodate specific development proposals should be avoided, or else the Plan
will become meaningless.” Particularly in light of the neighborhood opposition, amending the Plan to
accommodate a specific development proposal is not advisable public policy.

o The applicant has argued that the City needs to increase, diversify, & modernize our housing stock to
attract & retain young professionals. Planning staff agrees, but numerous public & private efforts are
underway to achieve that goal in other areas of the City, and the existence of that shared goal should not
override the voices of those already residing in our diverse central City neighborhoods.

 Land Use Analysis – Proposed Mixed Residential Use
o According to the Comprehensive Plan, the subject property is designated for Institutional & Community

Services, a recommendation which is “designed to facilitate large-scale public buildings, schools, religious
institutions, etc.”

o The Mixed Residential land use category “is intended for a variety of residential units focused on multiple
family housing, usually developed at densities that exceed six units per acre and served by public
sanitary sewer and water systems.” Within this recommendation, the plan encourages “multiple-family
residential building sizes of between 8 and 32 units.” The surrounding blocks average 6 units per acre.

o Planning staff supports the creation of additional multi-family developments in the City when compatible
with existing and/or proposed land uses and supported by existing and/or planned infrastructure, but the
proposed Plan amendment does not pass these tests.

o The proposed amendment to the Future Land Use Map would dramatically change the character of the
established immediate neighborhood. The subject property has always been a supportive institutional
presence, first as a school and later as an administrative office that offers employment opportunities and
operational hours that are compatible with the surrounding single-family districts. In addition, the
management of the site has always been accountable to the public and surrounding residents, thanks to
elected members of the School Board retaining oversight.

o The proposed amendment (and corresponding Planned Unit Development) would change the character
of the neighborhood by altering a century-old land use, eliminating public open space, and increasing
daily traffic counts by 50-100% on local streets that are ill-equipped to absorb additional traffic.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
 The City’s compliance with the Comprehensive Planning law’s consistency requirement is the impetus for this

request.
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends denial of the following proposed amendment to the Future Land
Use Map (Map 10) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan:

o 1633 Keeler Avenue (Kolak Education Center) – From Institutional & Community Services to Mixed
Residential.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: If approved, the proposed Plan amendment would allow the applicant’s development to
move forward, which would make the subject property taxable for the first time. However, the true fiscal impact is more
difficult to determine due to additional costs associated with infrastructure wear & tear, and protective services.

Attachments: Existing Land Use Map, Future Land Use Map, Proposed PUD, Public Notice, Mailing List, and Resolution.



4.a RPB-2015-09, Comp Plan Amendment (Kolak) Council Report



4.a RPB-2015-09, Comp Plan Amendment (Kolak) Council Report

Map 10, Future Land Use (Narrowed to Subject Properties)



4.a RPB-2015-09, Comp Plan Amendment (Kolak) Council Report



4.a RPB-2015-09, Comp Plan Amendment (Kolak) Council Report







4.b PUD-2015-01, Kolak Redevelopment, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report

RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) MASTER

LAND USE PLAN FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1633 KEELER AVENUE

WHEREAS, the application of Commonwealth Development for approval of a Planned
Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land Use Plan for the property located at 1633 Keeler
Avenue, having been considered by the City Council of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public
hearing held for that purpose and due notice of said hearing having been given by publication as
appears by the Proof of Publication on file in the office of the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the
City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby approve the attached PUD - Master Land
Use Plan for the property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue in the City of Beloit, for the following
described premises:

LOTS 1 TO 19 INCL & L 20 EX E 20 FT WOODBURYS ADD. ALSO,
PARTRIDGE AVE VAC FROM KEELER TO CARNEGIE ALSO PARCEL OF
LAND LYING N OF LOTS 14 - 20 & E OF PARTRIDGE VACATED & WEST
OF 1253-1965 ROOSEVELT FIELD, ALL SITUATED IN THE CITY OF
BELOIT, COUNTY OF ROCK, STATE OF WISCONSIN (ALSO KNOWN AS
1633 KEELER AVENUE, PARCEL NUMBER 12531960). SAID PARCEL
CONTAINS 5.7 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

Adopted this ___ day of ________________, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, Council President

ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



4.b PUD-2015-01, Kolak Redevelopment, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land Use Plan for the property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue

Date: November 16, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Commonwealth Development has submitted an application for review and consideration of a Planned Unit Development
(PUD) - Master Land Use Plan for the Kolak Education Center property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue. A copy of the
PUD - Master Land Use Plan is attached to this report.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The applicant has made an accepted offer to purchase the subject property from the School District of Beloit.
 The applicant has proposed the adaptive reuse/redevelopment of the Kolak Center building into 34 housing units,

along with the construction of a detached 6-unit townhouse building, for a total of 40 new dwelling units. The
proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan also includes a driveway extension to the townhouse building, elimination
of a parking area, relocation of the playground, and numerous other site improvements.

 The PUD District is a special-purpose zoning district that permits greater flexibility in land planning and site design
standards than conventional zoning districts and is intended to provide flexibility in architectural design and
clustering of buildings. The process begins with submittal of a PUD – Master Land Use Plan, which is a
conceptual plan. The PUD process also involves rezoning the subject property to PUD.

 The proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan is one of three land use applications needed for this project. The
others are a requested amendment to the Future Land Use Map to recommend Mixed Residential uses for the
subject property and a request for a Zoning Map Amendment (rezoning) from PLI, Public Lands & Institutions
District to PUD District. All three applications are being reviewed on the same meeting schedule.

 The subject property is 1-2 blocks from the closest arterial streets (White & Prairie), so all traffic to/from the site
must utilize local streets (i.e. La Salle, Hinsdale, Eaton, Partridge, Central, & Keeler). According to the Institute of
Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Report (8

th
Edition), a multifamily residential unit generates an

average of 7.5 total trips per day. Therefore, the proposed 40-unit development would generate an average of
300 total trips per weekday, or 50% more than the traffic generated by Kolak. Kolak does not currently generate
any significant weekend traffic, whereas the PUD would generate 200 – 300 vehicle trips per weekend day.

 If approved, the Fire Dept. will require increased water supply along Carnegie and additional hydrants.
 If approved, the City Engineer will require designated haul routes & bonding to cover damage, Keeler bus lane

removal & driveway consolidation, sanitary sewer relocation, and replacement/enhancement of the Carnegie
water main from 6 inches to 8 inches to supply adequate pressure for fire protection.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on October 7, 2015 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend denial
of the PUD - Master Land Use Plan, based upon the standards in Section 2-402(g) of the Zoning Ordinance.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



4.b PUD-2015-01, Kolak Redevelopment, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: October 7, 2015 Agenda Item: 6 File Number: PUD-2015-01
Applicant: Commonwealth
Development

Owner: School District of Beloit Location: 1633 Keeler Avenue

Existing Zoning: PLI, Public Lands &
Institutions District

Existing Land Use: School District
Office Building

Parcel Size: 5.7 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
Commonwealth Development has submitted an application for review and consideration of a Planned Unit Development
(PUD) - Master Land Use Plan for the Kolak Education Center property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue. A copy of the
PUD - Master Land Use Plan is attached to this report.

Key Issues:
 The applicant has made an accepted offer to purchase the subject property from the School District of Beloit.
 The applicant has proposed the adaptive reuse/redevelopment of the Kolak Center building into 34 housing units,

along with the construction of a detached 6-unit townhouse building, for a total of 40 new dwelling units. The
proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan also includes a driveway extension to the townhouse building, elimination
of a parking area, relocation of the playground, and numerous other site improvements.

 The PUD District is a special-purpose zoning district that permits greater flexibility in land planning and site design
standards than conventional zoning districts and is intended to provide flexibility in architectural design and
clustering of buildings. The process begins with submittal of a PUD – Master Land Use Plan, which is a
conceptual plan. The PUD process also involves rezoning the subject property to PUD, either during or after
consideration of the PUD – Master Land Use Plan.

 The proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan is one of three land use applications needed for this project. The
others are a requested amendment to the Future Land Use Map to recommend Mixed Residential uses for the
subject property and a request for a Zoning Map Amendment (rezoning) from PLI, Public Lands & Institutions
District to PUD District. All three applications are being reviewed on the same meeting schedule.

 Neighborhood History & Context
o The subject building was constructed (circa 1919) as Roosevelt Jr. High School, which operated until

1980. In 1982, the School District renovated the school building into the district’s administrative offices.
o With at least half of the 6-acre site unimproved, the subject property has historically served as the

neighborhood’s open space. There is a City-owned baseball field (park) to the east of the subject
property, and the parkland backs up to the railroad tracks. The Turtle Creek Floodplain Greenway lies on
the opposite side of the railroad tracks and creek.

o As shown on the attached map, the predominant surrounding land use is single-family residential with a
detached garage. The majority of the neighborhood homes were constructed from 1905 to 1930, when
this neighborhood (and all of Beloit) experienced rapid growth. The majority of homes are owner-
occupied, although that percentage decreases noticeably from the east to west. There are a few duplexes
in the immediate area, although the neighborhood was downzoned to single-family residential in 2001.

 Land Use Planning Considerations
o According to the Comprehensive Plan, the subject property is designated for Institutional & Community

Services, a recommendation which is “designed to facilitate large-scale public buildings, schools, religious
institutions, etc.” The proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan is inconsistent with this recommendation.

o The Mixed Residential land use category requested by the applicant “is intended for a variety of
residential units focused on multiple family housing, usually developed at densities that exceed six units
per acre.” The surrounding residential blocks average 6 - 7 units per acre, and the proposed PUD is 7
units per acre.

o Planning staff supports the creation of additional multi-family developments in the City when compatible
with existing and/or proposed land uses and supported by existing and/or planned infrastructure, but the
proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan does not pass these tests.

 Traffic Considerations & Projections
o The subject property is 1-2 blocks from the closest arterial streets (White & Prairie), so all traffic to/from

the site must utilize the local streets (i.e. La Salle, Hinsdale, Eaton, Partridge, Central, & Keeler).
o During the applicant’s neighborhood meeting on August 25

th
and the Plan Commission workshop on

September 23
rd

, the residents of the neighborhood expressed vehement and unanimous opposition to the
proposed project, with many neighbors citing increased traffic as their primary concern.



4.b PUD-2015-01, Kolak Redevelopment, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report

o Existing Kolak Traffic: There are 55 employees that work at the Kolak Center. Assuming each employee
drives to/from work and 25 employees leave the office once for lunch and/or meetings each day, the
current employee trips are approximately 160. Assuming 20 public visits per day, that brings the total
weekday traffic generated by Kolak Center to approximately 200 vehicle trips.

o According to the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Report (8
th

Edition), a
multifamily residential unit generates an average of 7.5 total trips per day. Therefore, the proposed 40-
unit development would generate an average of 300 total trips per weekday, or 50% more than the traffic
generated by Kolak. The ITE also provides an estimate for PUD’s that include a range of units (including
40) that estimates total weekday trips at 10.775 per unit. Using this estimate, the proposed PUD would
generate 431 total trips per weekday, or more than twice the number of trips generated by Kolak.

o Kolak does not currently generate any significant weekend traffic, whereas the proposed PUD would
generate 200 – 300 vehicle trips per weekend day.

o The proposed PUD provides adequate off-street parking that complies with the Zoning Ordinance.
 Public Comments: The attached Public Notice was sent to property owners within 300 feet of the subject

property, along with those who provided contact information at the neighborhood meeting in August and the Plan
Commission workshop in September. Dozens of neighbors spoke in opposition to the proposed PUD – Master
Land Use Plan at each of the meetings, and staff has been contacted by dozens of residents both in and outside
of the neighborhood who oppose the proposed redevelopment.

 Review Agents Concerns
o If approved, the Fire Dept. will require increased water supply along Carnegie and additional hydrants.
o If approved, the City Engineer will require designated haul routes & bonding to cover damage, Keeler bus

lane removal & driveway consolidation, sanitary sewer relocation, and replacement/enhancement of the
Carnegie water main from 6 inches to 8 inches to supply adequate pressure for fire protection.

 Section 5-305 of the Zoning Ordinance requires the City Council to establish development standards during the
PUD process. If approved, the PUD – Master Land Use Plan would be the conceptual approval of land use,
building, and parking locations, with detailed civil site plans to follow for staff review & approval.

 Section 2-402(g) of the Zoning Ordinance allows for the approval of a PUD - if the following criteria can be met:
o The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict

application of otherwise applicable standards, based on the purpose and intent of the Zoning
Ordinance. The proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan would dramatically change the character of the
established immediate neighborhood. The subject property has always been a supportive institutional
presence, first as a school and later as an administrative office that offers employment opportunities and
operational hours that are compatible with the surrounding single-family district. In addition, the
management of the site has always been accountable to the public and surrounding residents, thanks to
elected members of the School Board retaining oversight.

o The PUD - Master Land Use Plan complies with the standards of Section 5-300. The PUD - Master
Land Use Plan does not comply with the standards of Section 5-301.

o Service providers will be able to provide necessary public services, facilities, and programs to
serve the development proposed. See infrastructure comments above, which would be applicant’s cost.

o The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and objectives contained
in the Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policies and documents. The proposed PUD is
inconsistent with the adopted Future Land Use Map, which recommends continued institutional uses.

o The PUD - Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the development
will promote the general welfare of the community. The proposed PUD would change the character of
the neighborhood by altering a century-old land use, eliminating public open space, and increasing daily
traffic counts by 50-100% on local streets that are ill-equipped to absorb additional traffic.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends denial of the proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan for the
Kolak Education Center property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue, based on its inconsistency with the Zoning Ordinance
and the City’s Comprehensive Plan.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Proposed PUD Plan, Existing Land Use Map, Photos, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



4.b PUD-2015-01, Kolak Redevelop
ment, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report

Proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan



4.b PUD-2015-01, Kolak Redevelopment, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.b PUD-2015-01, Kolak Redevelopment, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.b PUD-2015-01, Kolak Redevelopment, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.b PUD-2015-01, Kolak Redevelopment, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.b PUD-2015-01, Kolak Redevelopment, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.b PUD-2015-01, Kolak Redevelopment, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.b PUD-2015-01, Kolak Redevelopment, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.b PUD-2015-01, Kolak Redevelopment, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report

ORDINANCE NO. ____________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF BELOIT

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows:

Section 1. The Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit, mentioned in the Zoning Code,
Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is amended as follows:

The following described land, also known as 1633 Keeler Avenue, is hereby changed from PLI,
Public Lands & Institutions District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District:

LOTS 1 TO 19 INCL & L 20 EX E 20 FT WOODBURYS ADD. ALSO,
PARTRIDGE AVE VAC FROM KEELER TO CARNEGIE ALSO PARCEL OF
LAND LYING N OF LOTS 14 - 20 & E OF PARTRIDGE VACATED & WEST
OF 1253-1965 ROOSEVELT FIELD, ALL SITUATED IN THE CITY OF
BELOIT, COUNTY OF ROCK, STATE OF WISCONSIN (ALSO KNOWN AS
1633 KEELER AVENUE, PARCEL NUMBER 12531960). SAID PARCEL
CONTAINS 5.7 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

Section 2. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and
publication.

Adopted this ____ day of ___________, 2015.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, Council President
Attest:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

Published this ____ day of _________, 2015

Effective this ____ day of _________, 2015

01-611100-5231-



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Zoning Map Amendment Application for the property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue

Date: November 16, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Commonwealth Development has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district
classification from PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District, for the Kolak
Center property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue. The attached Location & Zoning Map shows subject property and area.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The requested PUD zoning is tied to the applicant’s PUD – Master Land Use Plan, which proposes the adaptive

reuse/redevelopment of the Kolak Center building into 34 housing units, along with the construction of a detached
6-unit townhouse building, for a total of 40 new dwelling units. If approved, the applicant will need to submit
detailed site & architectural plans for Planning staff review and approval.

 The applicant also submitted an application to amend the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map to
recommend Mixed Residential uses for the subject property.

 An extensive discussion of neighborhood context, land use planning considerations, traffic projections, public
comments, and infrastructure concerns is contained in the Staff Report for the PUD – Master Land Use Plan.

 Neighborhood Petition: The neighborhood has submitted the attached Neighborhood Protest Petition in
opposition to the applicant’s request. This petition is signed by 173 neighbors.

 Zoning Protest Petition: Following the Plan Commission meeting, Planning staff received the attached Zoning
Protest Petition signed by the owners of more than 20% of the land area within 100 feet of the subject property.
Planning staff has reviewed the petition and determined that it is a valid Zoning Protest Petition under Section 2-
306 of the Zoning Ordinance/Wisconsin Statutes 62.23(7)(d)(2m)(a). As a result, at least three-fourths of the
Council members present need to vote in favor of Commonwealth’s application in order to approve the rezoning
request from PLI to PUD.

 Plan Commission Vote: The Plan Commission reviewed this item on October 7, 2015 and voted unanimously
(6-0) to recommend denial of this Zoning Map Amendment, based upon Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The proposed PUD is inconsistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan, which recommends Institutional & Community
Service uses. Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and 1

st
reading of the proposed Ordinance

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Ordinance, Zoning Protest Petition, Neighborhood Petition, and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: October 7, 2015 Agenda Item: 7 File Number: ZMA-2015-03
Applicant: Commonwealth
Development

Owner: School District of Beloit Location: 1633 Keeler Avenue

Current Zoning: PLI
Proposed Zoning: PUD

Existing Land Use: School District
Office

Total Area: 5.7 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
Commonwealth Development has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district
classification from PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District, for the Kolak
Center property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue. The attached Location & Zoning Map shows subject property and area.

Key Issues:
 The requested PUD zoning is tied to the applicant’s PUD – Master Land Use Plan, which proposes the adaptive

reuse/redevelopment of the Kolak Center building into 34 housing units, along with the construction of a detached
6-unit townhouse building, for a total of 40 new dwelling units. If approved, the applicant will need to submit
detailed site & architectural plans for Planning staff review and approval.

 The applicant also submitted an application to amend the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map to
recommend Mixed Residential uses for the subject property.

 An extensive discussion of neighborhood context, land use planning considerations, traffic projections, public
comments, and infrastructure concerns is contained in the Staff Report for the PUD – Master Land Use Plan.

 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a
recommendation based on the following considerations:
a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property;

• As shown on the attached map, the predominant surrounding land use is single-family residential. The
proposed PUD would dramatically change the character of the established immediate neighborhood. The
subject property has always been a supportive institutional presence, first as a school and later as a
school office that offers employment opportunities and hours that are compatible with the neighborhood.

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property;
• As shown on the attached map, the subject property is surrounded by R-1B, Single-Family Residential,

with the exception of the adjacent parkland.
c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification; and

• The subject property has served as a school and school-related office building for a century, and is
certainly suitable for the other institutional uses allowed in the PLI district. The proposed PUD would
change the character of the neighborhood by altering a century-old land use, eliminating public open
space, and increasing traffic counts by 50-100% on local streets that are ill-equipped to absorb it.

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
• The surrounding neighborhood has been a stable single-family neighborhood for decades, and has faced

very little development pressure in the recent past.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The proposed PUD is inconsistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan, which recommends Institutional & Community
Service uses. Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division
recommends denial of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from PLI, Public Lands &
Institutions District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District, for the property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue.

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, PUD – Master Land Use Plan, Application, & Public Notice.



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report



4.c ZMA-2015-03, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Council Report

See Mailing List in PUD-2015-01 Staff Report



PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.
Monday, November 2, 2015

Presiding: Charles M. Haynes
Present: Sheila De Forest, Regina Hendrix, Ana Kelly, Chuck Kincaid, David F. Luebke, Marilyn

Sloniker
Absent: None

1. President Haynes called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Forum at Beloit City Hall.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS-None

5. CITZEN PARTICIPATION-None

6. CONSENT AGENDA

Councilors Luebke and Kincaid made a motion to adopt the consent agenda as presented. Motion
carried, voice vote.

a. The Minutes of the Special Meeting of October 19 Regular Meeting were approved.
b. An application for a Class “B” Beer and “Class C” Wine License for The Noodle Shop, Co.-

Colorado, Inc., d/b/a Noodles & Company, located at 2900 Milwaukee Road was referred to
ABLCC. File 8688

c. An application for a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for Palermo Enterprise,
LLC, 648 Fourth Street was referred to ABLCC. File 8688

d. An application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification of the
property located at 20 Park Avenue from C-3, Community Commercial District to M-1, Limited
Manufacturing District was referred to Plan Commission. File 6226

e. A resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C15-17, Gateway Water Tower
Repainting was approved. 8686

8. ORDINANCES

a. City Attorney Elizabeth Krueger presented a proposed Ordinance to amend section 15.06(3)(a) &
(b) of the Code of General Ordinances for the City of Beloit relating to Alcohol Possession and
Consumption, but not sale, of fermented malt beverages or wine for a first reading. Attorney
Krueger explained that City ordinance allows the issuance of beer and wine picnic licenses for
consumption or possession (and not sale) of beer or wine in the Leeson, Big Hill, Telfer, Wootton,
Summit, George Hilliard, and Riverside Parks and the Krueger recreation area. The wine and
beer permits are currently issued by the Police Department. Staff believes that it will be better
customer service to move those responsibilities to the Division of Parks and Leisure Services.
This will provide customers with a “one-stop shop” for renting park shelters and obtaining any
desired permits. Parks staff will review and ensure the requirements of the ordinance are met
prior to issuance. Councilor De Forest sought clarification to ensure that any checks done by the
Police Department can also be done by the Parks and Leisure Services. Attorney Krueger
confirmed that residency checks and other items necessary are available to parks staff.



Councilors Sloniker and Hendrix made a motion to lay this ordinance over to the next meeting for
a second reading. Motion carried, voice vote. File 5663

9. APPOINTMENTS - None

10. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

• Councilor Hendrix attended the dedication of the Barbara Hickman Center of the Arts grand
opening at Fruzen Intermediate School and was able to sing for Ms. Hickman as one of her
former students. She also attended Family Discovery night at Beloit College last Friday – the
event mixes kids and science, two of her favorite things. She attended both the Community
Action and Visit Beloit meetings this past week. She also invited everyone to enjoy the play
RENT at Beloit College next week. Tickets are available now at Beloit.edu/theatre for Nov.
12-15 and 20-21.

• Councilor Sloniker attended the PFC meeting last week. She congratulated the two officers
who were promoted. She also attended the “lunch with fathers” at Community Action to learn
more about the fatherhood program.

• Councilor Kelly attended the Stateline Women’s Fund Luncheon last Thursday and was
impressed by the event and the purpose of the organization.

• Councilor Luebke expressed pride for another great year at the Beloit Farmer’s Market.
• Councilor De Forest attended the community engagement listening session at Merrill school

and was happy to see the turnout and dialogue. She attended the Traffic Review committee
as well as the PFC meeting last week. She explained that she’s been working hard at some
farm to school initiatives and attended some Rock County meetings on that topic. She also
attended the “lunch with fathers”. She congratulated Officer Keith Lynn and Beloit K-9 Glory
for winning the American Humane Association Hero Dog Award.

• Councilor Kincaid attended the Women’s Fund Luncheon as well and mentioned that the
Monday Beloit Daily News did a great page 1 feature on the speaker. He also attended the
listening session at Merrill school and PFC meeting as well as the League of Women voters
meeting last week.

• President Haynes had nothing to add.

11. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION

a. Director of Operations Chris Walsh presented the City of Beloit Fall Curbside Yard Waste
Program. She shared that this programs runs the first three weeks in November and offers
free collection of fall leaves, grass clippings and garden debris. She explained that these
items need to be contained in paper bags or clean trash cans that are under 39 gallons and
weighing less than 60 pounds. Residents can also place bundles of 4 foot by 4 foot of
branches and shrubbery provided that they purchase stickers from the City in advance for
$1.50 each. If residents prefer to schedule to have their leaves picked up via the Cities
vacuum service, they can do so by raking their leaves to the terrace and have them picked up
at their scheduled times – there is a subscription costs of $100 for this service. She
concluded that questions can be directed to the Public Works Operations Facility by calling
364-2929 or visiting the City of Beloit website at www.beloitwi.gov .

12 REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented a resolution approving the
2016 Annual Action Plan and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Budget.
She explained that the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires each
CDBG formula grantee to submit a consolidated plan every five years and an annual action
plan every year. Both plans include specific objectives for housing, homelessness, public
housing and community development and include information on the CDBG process,
affordable housing, and special needs population. The city’s consolidated plan was approved
last year. The annual plan includes specifics about how the City intends to allocate its CDBG
funds over the next year. The Community Development Authority makes recommendations to
the City Council based on the applications received in how those applications meet the
specific objectives. A public hearing was held on October 19

th
and Ms. Christensen is seeking

http://www.beloitwi.gov/


approval of the allocations for year two as presented by the Council tonight. Council De
Forest expressed her sentiments and concerns. She stated that she believed the whole point
to setting funding priorities was so that we could take the funds available to make the largest
impact possible within the community. The past practices have been to give many agencies a
little money each, and by doing so has spread the funds quite thin. She is disappointed that
the CDA is continuing to spread the funds thin and some who receive money are not meeting
the funding priorities nor are we making maximum impact. She does not see that Healthnet,
Beloit Meals on Wheels and Voluntary Action Center meet the funding priorities. She believes
that taking the funds dedicated to these agencies and funding the Community Action
fatherhood project would directly meet funding priorities. Discussion followed.

Councilors Luebke and Sloniker made a motion to approve the resolution as presented.
Councilors De Forest and Hendrix made a motion to amend the resolution by using the funds
from Beloit Meals on Wheels and Healthnet totaling $14,000 to fund Community Actions
Fatherhood Initiative and Skills Enhancement Program. Motion failed on a vote of 2-5 with De
Forest and Hendrix voting in favor. The motion to approve as presented carried on a vote of
5-2 with De Forest and Hendrix voting against. File 8701

b. Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented a resolution approving the
2016 HOME Investment Partnership Budget. In July 2001, the City of Beloit, Rock County
and City of Janesville formed the Rock County HOME Consortium. This allows us to receive
HOME funds directly from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) similar
to CDBG.
• According to HOME Investment Partnership Program guidelines, 15 percent of the

HOME funds must be allocated to a Community Housing Development Organization
(CHDO). In this HOME agreement, it was determined that this 15 percent would be
allocated to a CHDO in Beloit. This agreement also established that the City of Beloit
would receive 19 percent of the Consortium dollars awarded.

• For 2016, we are estimating that the Consortium will receive $434,924. Based on that
budget, the City of Beloit’s share would be $82,635.56, and the CHDO share would be
$65,238.

• On September 29, 2015, the Community Development Authority (CDA) recommended
that the City’s dollars be used to fund the City’s Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan
Fund for owner-occupied properties and/or acquisition-rehab projects, and the CHDO
dollars be used for acquisition-rehabilitation project(s) in Beloit.

Councilors Lubeke and De Forest made a motion to approve the resolution as presented.
Motion carried unanimously, voice vote. File 8663

c. Executive Director of the Downtown Beloit Association, Shauna El-Amin presented a
resolution approving the 2016 Business Improvement District Operating Plan and
Budget. She highlighted the 2015 accomplishments of DBA stating there are 16 new
businesses downtown resulting in new jobs. Several sing grants were issued. They were
pleased to have 4 interns from Beloit College this year. Bushel and Peck received two CDBG
grants to improve storefront and upper story development. The SNAP program at the
Farmers Market was a success this season. Shauna reviewed the 5-year goals of their
strategic plan with the council. They are working on the sale of businesses and developing
new ones. They will continue to collaborate in 2016 with the community, the board and with
businesses. The 2016 Budget summary shows income projections of $346,174.08 and
expenses of $272,300.00. She welcomed questions from the Council members. Councilors
De Forest and Hendrix made a motion to approve the resolution as presented. Motion carried
unanimously, voice vote. File 8479

d. Director of Parks and Leisure Services, Brian Ramsey, presented a resolution approving a
Schedule of Fees, Charges and Rates for the Big Hill Center in the City of Beloit,
Wisconsin. The City of Beloit acquired the former Girls Scout Service Center building in Big
Hill Park in June of 2015. Since acquiring the building, minor renovations and repairs have
been completed in order to appropriately prepare for using this facility as another venue that
the general public can rent for their personal use and special events (i.e. birthday parties,
weddings, meetings, etc). The Parks & Leisure Services Division plans to operate this facility



in a similar fashion as the Rotary River Center by providing the general public with rental
options. Therefore, in order to begin marketing the facility and obtaining some possible
rentals income before the end of the 2015, it will be necessary to establish a fee structure.
The fees as outlined and proposed have been reviewed and recommended by the Park,
Recreation and Conservation Advisory Commission.
• The proposed fee structure has been reviewed and recommended for approval by the

Park, Recreation and Conservation Advisory Commission.
• The proposed fee structure includes differential rates for resident, non-residents, and for

not-for-profit 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code) groups.
• Rental fees are expected to generate modest revenue which will assist in offsetting

operational costs of the facility.
• Marketing strategies will include a separate brochure which will highlight the rental space

and outline rental fees.
• Reservations will be accepted at the Leisure Services Office.
Councilors Luebke and Kincaid made a motion to approve the resolution as presented.
Motion carried unanimously, voice vote. File 8649

e. Finance and Administrative Services Director, Eric Miller, presented a resolution authorizing
certain changes to the 2016 Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Rates for the City of Beloit,
Wisconsin. He explained that this resolution related to the Fees included in the 2016
proposed budget. These fees are reviewed and evaluated each year and adjustments are
made in order to keep costs aligned with the expense to run the programs and services we
offer. He noted that the most notable change is a 3% increase in waste water fees as well as
a .50 cent SFU increase in storm water fees.

Councilors Hendrix and Kincaid made a motion to approve the resolution as presented.
Councilor De Forest made a motion to amend the resolution by striking the rental permit fee
because she believes the fee was increased as recently as three years ago. She stated that
this fee helps pay for full time inspectors, of which she believes the City currently employs
more than necessary. Motion failed for lack of a second. Motion to approve the resolution as
presented carried on a voice vote of 6-1 with Councilor De Forest voting against. File 8695

f. Finance and Administrative Services Director, Eric Miller, presented a resolution approving
the Operating Budgets, Appropriating Funds, and Levying Property Taxes necessary
for the Operation and Administration of the City of Beloit for the Year 2016 including
the 2016 Capital Improvement Budget, the Beloit Public Library Budget; and further
authorizing the City Treasurer to spread the City Property Tax along with the apportionments
certified for other Jurisdictions upon the current tax roll of the City. Mr. Miller explained that
this is the final step of the 2016 budget process is the result of months of planning and
meetings, including a full day workshop and public hearing.

Councilor De Forest thanked Mr. Miller and his staff for the laborious work they have put into
presenting a responsible budget for the City. Ms. De Forest feels strongly that if the City does
not receive the COPS grant money that is being applied for, she will be adamant about
addressing the needs of adequate police staffing through other options. While she remains
optimistic about the grant, she wants to be on record stating that she will want to revisit if it
doesn’t come through in order to meet the needs of the department and the citizens. City
Administrator Lori Luther wanted to publicly thank the department directors, division heads,
finance staff and all employees for the significant work put into this document and she is
proud to be a part of this team. She noted that while the financial position of the City
continues to be difficult, having a room full of people dedicated to solutions made all the
difference. Councilors Luebke and Sloniker made a motion to approve the proposed budgets
as presented. Motion carried unanimously, voice vote. File 8695

g. Director of Transit, Michelle Gavin, presented a resolution accepting 2015 Beloit Transit
Development Plan. The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) (49 U.S.C. 5303) requires all
FTA funded activities to be included in a continuing, comprehensive, and cooperative (3C)
multimodal transportation planning process. The TDP satisfies these requirements for the
Beloit Transit System and should be updated every five years. Accepting the plan does not



automatically implement the plan’s recommendations. Councilors Kelly and De Forest made
a motion to approve the resolution as presented. Motion carried unanimously, voice vote.
File 4410

h. Public Works Director, Greg Boysen, presented a resolution calling on the Governor and
Legislature of the State of Wisconsin to release the State 2015-17 Budget full funding
of the I-39/90 Expansion Project. Mr. Boysen explained that the recently-passed budget
constrained $350 million in contingency bonding that could be applied to projects including
the I-39/90 project. The legislature has not approved the release of the contingency funds
which could help mitigate the announced two-year delay of the project. This resolution joins
with other local governments in Rock County urging the Governor and the Legislature to
release the bonding for full funding of the I-39/90 corridor project. Councilors Luebke and
Kelly made a motion to approve the resolution as presented. Motion carried unanimously,
voice vote. File 8558

i. Councilors Luebke and Sloniker made a motion for the City Council to adjourn into closed
session pursuant to Wis. Stats §19.85(1)(g) to discuss the possible settlement of pending
personal injury litigation. Motion carried, voice vote. The Council proceeded into closed
session at 8:00 pm. Councilors Hendrix and Kelly made a motion to reconvene into open
session. Motion carried, voice vote. No further action was taken on this matter.

j. Councilors Sloniker and Hendrix made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:23 p.m. Motion
carried.

___________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

www.beloitwi.gov
Date approved by City Council: November 16, 2015

http://www.beloitwi.gov/


RESOLUTION APPROVING A CLASS “B” BEER
AND “CLASS C” WINE LICENSE

WHEREAS, an application has been received for a Class “B” Beer and “Class C”
Wine License from The Noodle Shop, Co.-Colorado, Inc., d/b/a Noodles & Company,
Charles M. Haug, Agent, for the property located at 2900 Milwaukee Road, Beloit,
Wisconsin; and

WHEREAS, the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommended
approval of this Class “B” Beer and “Class C” Wine License for the remainder of the
2015-2016 license year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit
does hereby approve a Class “B” Beer and “Class C” Wine License for The Noodle
Shop, Co.-Colorado, Inc., d/b/a Noodles & Company, Charles M. Haug, Agent, for the
property located at 2900 Milwaukee Road, Beloit, Wisconsin; and

Dated this 16th day of November 2015.

_______________________________
Charles M. Haynes, City Council President

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Application for a Class “B” Beer and “Class C” Wine License for The Noodle Shop, Co.-Colorado, Inc.,
d/b/a Noodles & Company, located at 2900 Milwaukee Road

Date: November 16, 2015

Presenter(s): Lorena Rae Stottler Department: City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:

The Noodle Shop, Co.-Colorado, Inc., d/b/a Noodles & Company, has submitted an application for a Class “B” Beer and
“Class C” Wine License for the property located at 2900 Milwaukee Road in the City of Beloit. The applicant intends to
open a Noodles & Company restaurant.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. McBain Enterprises Inc. owns the property. The applicant has provided proof of control over the premises through
lease agreement prior to issuance of the license.

2. The Noodle Shop, Co.-Colorado, Inc. has appointed Charles M. Haug as the Agent. Mr. Haug is a resident of
Wisconsin, as required by state law.

3. Arby’s previously occupied this location.
4. This application was reviewed by the ABLCC at their November 10, 2015 meeting and a motion to recommend

approval passed on a vote of 5-0.
5. This license application is coming before the City Council for recommended approval at the November 16

th

regular meeting.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
This project conforms to the City’s Strategic Plan Goals #2 and #5 – encouraging business development and private
sector investment, and promoting high quality development in the City.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The applicant intends to open

a restaurant in an existing vacant building in the Milwaukee Street Corridor. This may bring additional people to
the area and may spur additional economic development.

Action required/Recommendation:
Recommend that the City Council refer this application to ABLCC committee for consideration and recommendation.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
$50.00 Publication Fee paid. The $200.00 license fee will be pro-rated for the remaining months in the licensing period
and is due before issuance of license.

Attachments:
Application, Schedule for Appointment of Agent, Auxiliary Questionnaires













RESOLUTION APPROVING A CLASS “B” BEER
AND “CLASS B” LIQUOR LICENSE

WHEREAS, an application has been received for a Class “B” Beer and “Class B”
Liquor License from Palermo Enterprises, d/b/a (name unknown), Nathan Lipps, Agent,
for the property located at 648 Fourth Street, Beloit, Wisconsin; and

WHEREAS, the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommended
approval of this Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for the remainder of the
2015-2016 license year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit
does hereby approve a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for Palermo
Enterprises, d/b/a (name unknown), Nathan LIpps, Agent, for property located at 648
Fourth Street, Beloit, Wisconsin.

Dated this 16th day of November 2015.

_______________________________
Charles M. Haynes, City Council President

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution approving a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for Palermo Enterprise LLC,
located at 648 Fourth Street

Date: November 16, 2015

Presenter(s): Lorena Rae Stottler Department: City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:

Palermo Enterprise LLC, has submitted an application for a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for property
located at 648 Fourth Street. The applicant intends to open a restaurant on the property. Council referred the application
to the ABLCC at its November 2 meeting. The license will only cover the property at 648 4

th
Street – he also owns 658 4

th

Street but that property is not included in this license.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Peter Gabriele, owns the property and Palermo Enterprise LLC.
2. The restaurant, has appointed Nathan Lipps, of Sun Prairie as the Agent. Mr. Lipps is a resident of Wisconsin, as

required by state law.
3. The ABLCC reviewed the application at their November 10, 2015 meeting and recommended approval on a vote

of 5-0.
4. This license application is now before the City Council for recommended approval at the November 16

th
regular

meeting.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
This project conforms to the City’s Strategic Plan Goals #2 and #5 – encouraging business development and private
sector investment, and promoting high quality development in the City.

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The applicant intends to open

a restaurant. This may bring additional people to the area and may spur additional economic development.

Action required/Recommendation:
Recommend that the City Council refer this application to ABLCC committee for consideration and recommendation.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
$50.00 Publication Fee paid. The $600.00 license fee will be pro-rated for the remaining months in the licensing period
and is due before issuance of license

Attachments:
Application, Schedule for Appointment of Agent, Auxiliary Questionnaires













6.d CU-2015-11, 1230 House Street, Church in R-1B, Council Referral

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for the property located at 1230 House Street – Council Referral to the Plan
Commission

Date: November 16, 2015

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Marilyn Sloniker has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Religious Institution in an R-1B, Single-
Family Residential District, for the property located at 1230 House Street.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The applicant recently purchased the subject property and intends to operate Hope For All International

Fellowship in the former Kiddie Ranch Afterschool building on the property.
 The applicant does not intend to make significant modifications to the existing building, and intends to utilize the

adjacent public parking lot within Krueger Community Park when services are held.
 While Religious Institutions are permitted by-right in the PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District and higher density

residential districts, they require a Conditional Use Permit in single-family districts.
 The application and a location map are attached to this report.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the November 18, 2015 meeting
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for a public hearing and possible action on December 7, 2015

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map and Application



6.d CU-2015-11, 1230 House Street, Church in R-1B, Council Referral



6.d CU-2015-11, 1230 House Street, Church in R-1B, Council Referral



6.d CU-2015-11, 1230 House Street, Church in R-1B, Council Referral



RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING FINAL PAYMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT C15-03

Concrete Pavement Repair

WHEREAS, work under this contract has been completed satisfactorily and in conformance
with the requirements of the contract; and

WHEREAS, This project replaced broken pavement slabs at the intersection of Park Avenue
and White Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the city engineer, comptroller, and attorney recommend final payment to the
contractor.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Beloit City Council that Parisi Construction
Co. Inc. be paid $14,832.68 as the final payment for Public Works Contract C15-03 Concrete
Pavement Repair as recommended by the City Engineer.

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin, this 16th day of November 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Charles M. Haynes, President
ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

























ORDINANCE NO. _______________

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 15.06(3)(a) & (b) OF THE CODE OF
GENERAL ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF BELOIT RELATING

TO ALCOHOL POSSESSION AND CONSUMPTION, BUT NOT SALE,
OF FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGES OR WINE

Section 1. Section 15.06(3)(a) and (b) of Code of General Ordinances of the City of
Beloit, is hereby amended to read as follows:

“(a) A permit for possession and consumption, but not sale, of fermented malt
beverages or wine in Leeson, Big Hill, Telfer, Wootton, Summit, George
Hilliard, Riverside Park and the Krueger recreation area, excluding the
swimming pool, may be granted by the Division of Parks and Leisure Services
but only to residents of the City, organizations, the majority of whose
members are residents of the City, or to business organizations with a
principal place of business in the City.

(b) Application shall be made on a form provided by the Division of Parks and
Leisure Services and shall set forth the name, address and age of the
applicant, the date, time and place proposed for use and the number of
persons to attend.”

Section 2. This ordinance shall be in force and take effect upon passage and publication.

Adopted this ____ day of November, 2015.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

By:
Charles M. Haynes, President

ATTEST:

By:
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

PUBLISHED:
EFFECTIVE DATE:
01-611100-5231-
tdh/ordinances/15.06(3)(a)&(b) = ORD 20151020 (15-1169)



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: An Ordinance To Amend Section 15.06(3)(a) & (b) of the Code of General Ordinances For
the City of Beloit Relating To Alcohol Possession and Consumption, But Not Sale, of
Fermented Malt Beverages or Wine

Date: November 16, 2015

Presenter: David B. Zibolski/Elizabeth A. Krueger Department: Police/Attorney

Overview/Background Information:

City ordinance allows the issuance of beer and wine picnic licenses for consumption or possession (and not sale) of beer
or wine in the Leeson, Big Hill, Telfer, Wootton, Summit, George Hilliard, and Riverside Parks and the Krueger recreation
area. The wine and beer permits are currently issued by the Police Department. Staff believes that it will be better
customer service to move those responsibilities to the Division of Parks and Leisure Services. This will provide customers
with a “one-stop shop” for renting park shelters and obtaining any desired permits. Parks staff will review and ensure the
requirements of the ordinance are met prior to issuance.

Key Issues:

1. Current permits for beer and wine possession and consumption are required to be issued by the Police Department.

2. Shifting the job responsibilities to the Division of Parks and Leisure Services will create a streamlined process for
customers wishing to book park shelters and have the option of obtaining a beer or wine permit.

3. Parks staff will review the requirements of the ordinance prior to issuance and will provide the police department with
a list of issued permits.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):
Approval of this Agreement would conform with Goal #1’s stated purpose of developing a high quality community through
the responsible stewardship and enhancement of City resources.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that
space

Action required/Recommendation:
The ordinance has been reviewed by city staff and is recommended for approval.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
This ordinance change does not impact the city’s overall budget.

Attachments:
Proposed ordinance





RESOLUTION ADOPTING REVISED GENERAL ADMINISTRATION POLICY
RELATED TO GRANT SUBMISSION, NOTIFICATION AND EVALUATION

WHEREAS, in December 1995, the City Council for the City of Beloit adopted a general
administration policy related to grant submission, notification and revaluation; and

WHEREAS, the deadline for some grant opportunities may sometimes make it difficult
to obtain city council authorization prior to the application deadline required by a grant
program; and

WHEREAS, the revisions to the policy allow the City Manager to authorize the
application for a grant where the application deadline occurs before city staff can present the
item for council consideration; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager’s authorization granted under this policy is conditioned
upon taking the matter to council for consideration at its next regular meeting.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Beloit does
hereby adopt the amendments to the General Administration Policy related to Grant
Submission, Notification and Evaluation as attached.

Adopted this 16th day of November, 2015

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELOIT

___________________________
Charles M. Haynes, President

Attest:

______________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk
Tdh/files/15-1188/Grants Policy = res = 20151109



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY COUNCIL POLICY STATEMENT FOR GRANT SUBMISSION, NOTIFICATION, AND
EVALUATION PROCEDURES

Date: November 16, 2015

Presenter: Fire Chief Brad Liggett Department:
Fire Department on Behalf of Leadership
Team

Overview/Background Information:

December 18, 1995 the Beloit City Council Adopted an administrative policy to administer and provide oversight for
grant programs where the City of Beloit was the benefactor and or applicant. The policy provided for accountability and
reporting through the organizations with ultimate authority being vested with the City Council. This policy is nearly 20
years out of date and staff wanted to reaffirm this policy with a few minor changes.

Key Issues:

1. This policy has been reformatted to current City Policy Design.
2. Language has been reformatted to provide for efficiency and flow in the document.
3. The policy now extends the ability for the city manager to authorize application when timeliness for application don’t afford

approval through the city council by the application deadline.
4. Grant evaluation procedures were revised to reflect the automated e-Grant environment. Grant accountability has increased

dramatically with eGrant applications and reporting. Instead of having a city committee review grant reporting, accountability in
the new policy rests in the Department Head to report directly to the city council through the chain of command. The
department head is responsible for providing all grant reports and documentation to Finance with the caveat that any
discrepancy that threaten grant viability or program objectives needs to be reported immediately.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

This purchase conforms to our strategic plan in goals 1.
1. As an eco-municipality, focus on the sustainable stewardship of City resources, services and infrastructure; to protect both

our built and natural environment and enhance the quality of life for current and future generations.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the built and
natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
This policy encourages the research and development of alternative financing options for city programs. This aid the council in
accomplishment of strategic objects while maintaining strict financial accountability.

Attachments:
Resolution
Copy of the 2015 Grant Policy
Copy of 1995 Grant Policy



City of Beloit, Wisconsin
Revised 11/16/2015

Page 1 of 4 General Administration Policy
Grant Submission, Notification and Evaluation

City of Beloit General Administration Policy

GRANT SUBMISSION, NOTIFICATION
AND EVALUATION

Issue Date

December 18, 1995
Revision Date

November 16, 2015
Pages

4

Special Instructions

I. PURPOSE

This policy is created to establish a pre-submission procedure and evaluation process
that encourages public comment on grants submitted by the city to public and private
sources.

II. STATEMENT OF POLICY

When submitting requests for grant funding, it shall be the policy of the City of Beloit to
solicit funds for programs that are consistent with the goals of the city, to administer
grant funds in the most efficient way possible and to regularly evaluate the programs
receiving such funding and to make such information readily available to the public for
comment.

III. APPLICABILITY

This policy is applicable to all city departments and divisions unless exempted by the
Council or other federal, state, and/or local ordinances. For example, the cooperation
agreement between the Beloit Public Library and the City gives the Library Board
authority to directly apply for aid and grants, but states that copies of all applications
must be filed with the City.

IV. POLICY

Except for those grants described in section D, the application for and acceptance of all
grants shall be approved by the City Council pursuant to this policy.

A. Initial Review
Prior to submission, a grant application must be reviewed by the appropriate
department head, the Finance and Administrative Services Director and the City
Manager. This review should include the following:



City of Beloit, Wisconsin
Revised 11/16/2015

Page 2 of 4 General Administration Policy
Grant Submission, Notification and Evaluation

1) Consistency with overall program goals of the City;
2) Identification of local match and/or other budget funds needed;
3) Personnel requirements to implement objectives of the grant;
4) Opinion from Finance and Administrative Services Director regarding staff

requirements to meet financial reporting requirements; and
5) Review of time line for implementing grant and required Council actions

along with identification of responsible staff for program monitoring and
fiscal monitoring.

B. Notice of Intent to Apply

1) Following the initial review and prior to City Council review of the request, a
Notice of Intent to Apply shall be posted in the public notice bulletin board
on the first floor of City Hall and on the city’s website.

2) If the deadline for a grant application makes it impractical to seek council
approval prior to submission of the grant application, the City Manager may
authorize the submission of the application provided that approval for the
grant application is submitted to the Council for consideration at its next
regularly scheduled meeting. If Council does not authorize the approval of
the grant application, it shall immediately be withdrawn.

C. Grant Authorization

1) The Department applying for the grant will provide the Council with a copy of
the grant proposal and a written report identifying the five considerations
listed in section IV A above.

2) The Council may determine that certain types of grants are routine in nature
and/or annually renewable and may authorize submission for more than one
year at a time or waive this requirement entirely by resolution.

3) Grants that have not been approved through the annual budget review
approval process may require a budget amendment as part of the grant
authorization.

D. Exceptions for Certain Grants
Grants identified and approved through the City’s annual budget review approval
process shall not require authorization pursuant to section IV, but shall be subject
to the review and evaluation procedures outlined in sections V and VI.

V. REVIEW OF FINANCIAL AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Once the grant has been approved by the funding agency, the department that
requested the grant (“Grantee Department”) shall forward the original grant award



City of Beloit, Wisconsin
Revised 11/16/2015

Page 3 of 4 General Administration Policy
Grant Submission, Notification and Evaluation

document to the office of the City Clerk and to the City Manager who shall inform the
City Council.

Prior to expenditure of any funds, the Grantee Department and the Finance and
Administrative Services Department will review all procedures regarding the
reimbursement of funds and staff assignments for financial and program reporting
requirements.

Upon completion of the procedural review, the Accounting Division will establish the
appropriate budget and notify the Grantee Department. A grant document file will be
established and retained in the Accounting Division to include a copy of the original
grant award, award modifications, budgetary information, and completed
reimbursement, receipt and final report documentation.

The Grantee Department will be primarily responsible for meeting deadlines and
complying with program requirements. The Accounting Department Division will assist
the Grantee Department in the areas identified in the procedural review and during any
audit process.

VI. EVALUATION

A. Financial Review. On a semi-annual basis, unless otherwise provided for in the
grant award, the Grantee Department and the Finance and Administration Services
Department will review the accuracy of expenditures, fulfillment of grant
expenditure requirements and financial reporting requirements set forth by the
funding agency. The Grantee Department shall provide copies of grant reporting
documents upon request. A file of all reporting documents will be maintained by
the Accounting Division.

B. Program Review. It is the responsibility of the Grantee Department to
immediately report to the City Manager and the Finance and Administrative
Services Director any financial discrepancy, deviation from or failure to meet grant
objectives, or any issue that may threaten the viability of the grant program. The
Grantee Department shall also immediately report to the City Manager and the
Finance and Administrative Services Director any negative findings of an audit of
the funding agency. All Grantee Departments shall report to the City Council the
progress and impact of grant programs authorized through the annual budget
review approval process.



City of Beloit, Wisconsin
Revised 11/16/2015

Page 4 of 4 General Administration Policy
Grant Submission, Notification and Evaluation

VII. APPROVAL
This policy is approved by resolution of the City Council dated November 16, 2015 and is
intended to supersede the policy of the same name approved by City Council dated
December 18, 1995.

Dated this 16th day of November, 2015.

City Council of the City of Beloit

__________________________________
Charles M. Haynes, President

Attest:

______________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk







RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION AND
ACCEPTANCE OF A COMMUNITY GRANT FROM THE WALMART FOUNDATION

FOR “SHOP WITH A HERO” PROGRAM AND
AMENDING THE 2015 GENERAL FUND OPERATING BUDGET FOR THIS GRANT PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the Walmart Foundation offers a community grant program to offer grants to local
organizations to support the needs of communities; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit’s police and fire departments have obtained grants from the
Walmart Foundation for the purposes of offering the Shop with a Hero” program; and

WHEREAS, the grants are received just prior to the holiday season in order to provide
opportunities for children in the community to have a positive interaction with local police officers and
firefighters in a social setting; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit adopted the 2015 Operating Budget on November 3, 2014 which
included the operating costs for Fire & Rescue Services and Police Services; and

WHEREAS, the Operating Budget for Fire & Rescue or Police Services does not include the
revenue or appropriation for this grant program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Beloit is hereby
authorized to apply for said grants and to execute any other documents necessary to effectuate the
purpose of this resolution.

BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED that the 2015 General Fund Operating Budget for Fire & Rescue and
Police Services be amended to permit the revenue and expenditure of funds from this grant program.

Revenue Original Amended Difference
61666100-4393-35686 0 $5,000.00 +$5,000.00

EXPENDITURES Original Amended Difference
61666100-5343-35686 0 $5,000.00 +$5,000.00

Adopted this 16th day of November, 2015.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, President
Attest:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF A COMMUNITY GRANT FROM THE
WALMART FOUNDATION FOR “SHOP WITH A HERO” PROGRAM AND AMENDING THE 2015 GENERAL FUND
OPERATING BUDGET FOR THIS GRANT PROGRAM

Date: November 16, 2015

Presenter: Chief David Zibolski & Fire Chief Brad Liggett Department: Police Department & Fire Department

Overview/Background Information:

The Police Department and Fire Department have received non-competitive grants for 12 years from Wal-Mart in support of the
Shop with a Hero program. These grants are received just prior to the holiday season in order to provide opportunities for children
in the community to have a positive interaction with local police officers and firefighters in a non-enforcement situation.

Key Issues:

1. This is a non-competitive grant with no financial exposure to the departments or the City of Beloit
2. This is an annual grant to the departments for the purpose of community engagement activities; this grant will be included in

the annual budget in the future, funds will only be expended to the maximum amount of grant received.
3. This is a jointly coordinated with the Police and Fire Department personnel, including other community partners like the Town

of Beloit Police and Fire Departments and the Madison Field Office of the FBI. This provides a broad opportunity for this
positive interaction with the children and families in our community.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

Approval of this request would conform with the departments community engagement activities. Enhancing the lives of young
children through positive interaction with local law enforcement officers and firefighters is essential to our mission and values.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the built and

natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
There is no impact to the operating budget for the department. The grant is awarded and cash value purchases are utilized with the
Children for gifts of their choice for a maximum value of $35 per child. There is staff time require

Attachments:
Resolution Supporting and Authorizing the Acceptance of the Shop with a Hero Grant.
Notice of Intent To Apply
Walmart Foundation – Community Grant Program Information



CITY OF BELOIT POLICE AND FIRE
DEPARTMENTS

NOTICE OF INTENT TO APPLY FOR EXTERNAL FUNDING

DEPARTMENT: Fire Department & Police Department
DATE: November 5, 2015
FUNDING SOURCE: Walmart Foundation
NAME OF GRANT: Community Grant Program
AMOUNT of PROPOSED GRANT: $2,500 for Police & $2,500 for Fire
LOCAL MATCH REQUIREMENTS: NONE
APPLICATION PERIOD: February 1 - December 31, 2015
AWARD DATE: No later than 11/30/2015
PERFORMANCE PERIOD: 1 Day – “Shop with the Hero”
MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT: NONE

The Walmart Foundation offers a Community Grant program that the Police and Fire Department have
utilized for the last 12 years to fund our annual “Shop with the Hero” Program. There is no required
match. The department receives this cash value grant and utilizes the funds to help impoverished children
shop for Christmas. Kids have the ability to shop for themselves or use the money to shop for loved ones.
Each child will have the opportunity to shop with a Police Officer or Firefighter for a total value of $35
per child. Police Officers and Firefighters support the program through donation of their time to shop with
the children. This program is a valuable outreach opportunity to connect children with these dedicated
public safety role models.

For more information please contact Fire Chief Brad Liggett at 608-364-2900 or examine the following
Website, http://giving.walmart.com/apply-for-grants/local-giving.

http://giving.walmart.com/apply-for-grants/local-giving


RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 2015 CAPITAL IMPROVMENTS BUDGET FOR THE PURCHASE OF
SELF CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS EQUIPMENT FOR TECHNICAL RESCUE

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit adopted the 2015 Capital improvement Budget on November 3,
2014 which included the purchase of Personal Protective Equipment – Self Contained Breathing
Apparatus; and

WHEREAS, the Fire Department replaced our Self Contained Breathing Apparatus Systems in
2015 through the Capital Improvements Budget; and

WHEREAS, the Fire Department received revenue from the third party sale of our old
equipment; and

WHEREAS, the Fire Department needs to purchase additional equipment for Self Contained
Breathing Apparatus Systems for Technical Rescue services; and

WHEREAS, the Operating Budget for Fire & Rescue Services is not sufficient to purchase this
equipment;

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the 2015 Capital Improvements Budget be amended to
add for the purchase of this respiratory protection equipment with proceeds from the third
party sale of old equipment, leftover proceeds from another capital project, and fund balance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City appropriate additional funds as follows:

FUNDING SOURCE Original Amended Difference
P2911626-4416-2015 0 $16,000 +$16,000
P2911626-4900-2015 $200,000 $201,764 +$1,764
29 – 4999 $0 $3,236 +$3,236
TOTAL $200,000 $221,000 +$21,000

EXPENDITURES Original Amended Difference
P2911626-5533-2015 $200,000 $221,000 +$21,000

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin, this 16th day of November, 2015.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Charles M. Haynes, President
Attest:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 2015 CAPITAL IMPROVMENTS BUDGET FOR THE PURCHASE OF SELF CONTAINED
BREATHING APPARATUS EQUIPMENT FOR TECHNICAL RESCUE

Date: November 16, 2015

Presenter: Fire Chief Brad Liggett Department: Fire Department

Overview/Background Information:

In 2015 the fire department purchased new self-contained breathing apparatus from a CIP project. We were not able to
complete the project with the funds originally appropriated. We need an additional $21,000 to finish the project. The
old SCBA units were collected and sent to two different companies for re-sale by those companies. The fire department
projected proceeds from these companies that totaled approximately $16,000. We have already received $10,114 and
are expecting to receive another check for approximately $5,900 in the next few weeks. An additional allocation of
$1,764 from other unexpended CIP projects and $3,236 of fund balance in the capital improvements fund will help us
complete the project.

Key Issues:

1. Due to increased costs attributed to changes in the SCBA standards in firefighting breathing apparatus the department wasn’t
able to include this equipment in the primary 2015 CIP Purchase.

2. The equipment needed to complete this project is: 1200 feet of airline umbilical, 1200 feet of communication line, 12 low
pressure air bottles, 2 pelican cases, 2 supplied air regulators for a total purchase of approximately $21,000.

3. The additional equipment would allow the technical rescue team to be in compliance with current NFPA respiratory protection
standards, have directly wired communications where radio technology cannot penetrate, and the umbilical line will prolong
the life of our in-line respirator system and communication line by protecting it from abrasion in the dangerous environments
we work in.

4. The purchase of this equipment was detailed within the original scope of the CIP Project.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

This purchase conforms to our strategic plan in goals 1 and 3.
1. As an eco-municipality, focus on the sustainable stewardship of City resources, services and infrastructure; to protect both

our built and natural environment and enhance the quality of life for current and future generations.

3. Proactively partner with individuals and businesses to promote a safe and healthy community, minimize personal injury,
prevent loss of life and protect property and natural resources.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the built and

natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
There is no impact to the operating budget for the department. It is within policy for the proceeds received from the sale of this
equipment will be used to purchase additional respiratory equipment once authorized by this resolution.

Attachments:
Resolution


	Monday, November 16, 2015
	1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS
	a. Presentation of the Wisconsin Park & Recreation Association 2015 Silver Star Award to the Parks & Leisure Services Division for Beloit Dirty Dash  (Boysen)

	4. PUBLIC HEARINGS
	a. Proposed Ordinance amending the Future Land Use Map of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan to change the future land use designation for the property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue from Institutional & Community Services to Mixed Residential. (Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for denial 6-0.     First reading
	b. Resolution authorizing a Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land Use Plan, for property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue (Kolak Education Center)                     (Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for denial 6-0.		
	c. Proposed Ordinance amending the Zoning District Map to change the zoning district classification from PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District to PUD, Planned Unit Development District, for property located at 1633 Keeler Avenue (Kolak Education Center)  (Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for denial 6-0.	First reading

	5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	6. CONSENT AGENDA
	a. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 2, 2015 (Stottler)
	b. Resolution approving a Class “B” Beer and “Class C” Wine License for The Noodle Shop, Co.-Colorado, Inc., d/b/a Noodles & Company, located at 2900 Milwaukee Road  (Stottler)  ABLCC recommendation for
	c. Resolution approving a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for Palermo Enterprise, LLC, 648 Fourth Street  (Stottler)  ABLCC recommendation for
	d. Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a religious institution in an R-1B, Single Family Residential District, for the property located at 1230 House Street           (Christensen)  Refer to Plan Commission
	e. Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C15-03, Concrete Pavement Repair (Boysen)
	f. Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C15-05, Sealcoating (Boysen)
	g. Resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C14-14, Eagles Ridge Pedestrian Path (Boysen)

	7. ORDINANCES
	a. Proposed Ordinance to amend section 15.06(3)(a) & (b) of the Code of General Ordinances for the City of Beloit relating to Alcohol Possession and Consumption, but not sale, of fermented malt beverages or wine (Krueger)				 Second Reading

	8. APPOINTMENTS
	9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
	10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION
	a. Library Play & Read Grant received from Department of Public Instruction  (Dimassis/Schomber)

	11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS
	a. Resolution approving City Policy for Grant Application, Notification and Evaluation  (Liggett)
	b. Resolution authorizing Application and Acceptance of a Community Grant from the Walmart Foundation for “Shop with a Hero” Program and Amending the 2015 General Fund Operating Budget for this Grant Program  (Liggett)
	c. Resolution Amending the 2015 Capital Improvement Budget for the Purchase of Self Contained Breathing Apparatus Equipment for Technical Rescue  (Liggett)

	12. ADJOURNMENT

